Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1957

Salt Lake City Lines v. Salt Lake City : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal from an Order of the District Court of the Third Judicial District in and for Salt Lake County denying the plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment in the above entitled case and granting the defendant's Motion for a Summary Judgment of Dismissal.

The appellant raises no procedural question by this appeal

as it is agreed that this was a proper case for summary judgment. All material facts in the case are established by the pleadings, the only question being a question of law as to whether the plaintiff's Motion or the defendant's Motion should have been granted.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiff is a Utah corporation rendering mass transportation service in Salt Lake City and surrounding area. On the 12th day of July, 1944, the Public Service Commission of Utah issued Certificate of Convenience and Necessity No. 640 to the plaintiff, granting to the plaintiff the right to operate street cars, trolley coaches and motor busses in Salt Lake City and the surrounding area. A copy of the certificate was attached to the Complaint as Exhibit A and is part of the record on appeal in this court. Salt Lake City Lines at the time of issuance of the Certificate of Convenience and Necessity took over the services that had theretofore been rendered by its predecessor, Utah Light & Traction Company. In 1946 Salt Lake City Lines ceased the operation of street cars and trolley coaches and during the same year removed from the city streets of Salt Lake City all tracks and trolleys, and since 1947 has operated solely by the use of motor busses.

On the 25th day of February, 1951, Salt Lake City adopted an Ordinance which purported to grant a franchise to Salt Lake City Lines to operate as a common carrier within Salt Lake City, a copy of this Ordinance is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit B. Section 8 of this Ordinance provided that as a consideration for the granting of the franchise, Salt Lake City Lines should pay to Salt Lake City a tax of 2% upon the gross revenue of the company obtained within Salt Lake City. Section 10 of the Ordinance provided as follows:

"Salt Lake City Lines shall, within 30 days after the effective date of this Ordinance, file its acceptance thereof in writing with the City Recorder of Salt Lake City, otherwise the same shall be null and void."

Salt Lake City Lines has never at any time filed an acceptance of this Ordinance. Salt Lake City Lines, although it had never accepted the Ordinance, did pay 2% of its gross revenue derived within Salt Lake City Limits during the years 1951, 1952, 1953, 1954, and 1955. In 1956, Salt Lake City Lines requested of the City Commission of Salt Lake City that it not be required to pay the franchise tax. The City Commission thereupon adopted an Ordinance reducing the franchise tax to 1% for the year 1956. During the year 1956, Salt Lake City Lines paid 1% of its gross revenue derived within Salt Lake City to the Salt Lake City government. As of January 1, 1957, the City demanded that Salt Lake City Lines again resume payment of the tax at 2%.

The gross receipts tax thus established is not applicable to sight-seeing busses, taxi cabs, intercity busses or any other type of business enterprise running rubber tired motor vehicles for hire on the streets of Salt Lake City. By separate Ordinances the 2% gross receipts tax is applied to the electric utility, the telephone utility and the natural gas utility rendering service within Salt Lake City.

Early in the year 1957 the plaintiff instituted this action for a declaratory judgment, declaring the Ordinance of February '27, 1951 null and void. Salt Lake City filed an Answer admitting the facts set forth in the Complaint and alleging certain additional facts. The plaintiff thereupon filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and the defendant filed a Motion for Summary Judgment of Dismissal in its favor. After hearing oral arguments the defendant's Motion was granted. No Memorandum Decision was prepared by the district court so it is impossible for counsel to determine the exact grounds upon which the order of the court was made. In seeking a reversal of the judgment of the court below, the plaintiff and appellant relies upon the following Statement of Points.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

The District Court erred in granting the defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment and denying the plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment for the following reasons:

POINT ONE

THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951 IS NULL AND VOID UNDER ITS OWN TERMS BECAUSE OF THE REFUSAL OF THE PLAINTIFF TO ACCEPT THE SAME.

POINT TWO

PLAINTIFF IS NOT ESTOPPED FROM CHALLENG-ING THE VALIDITY OF THE ORDINANCE BY REA-SON OF THE FACT THAT IT HAS VOLUNTARILY MADE PAYMENT OF THE TAXES LEVIED BY SAID ORDINANCE.

POINT THREE

SECTION 8 OF THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951 IS VOID AND INEFFECTIVE AND IN VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 10-8-80, U.C.A., 1953 FOR THE REASON THAT THE TAX LEVIED THEREIN IS NOT UNIFORM IN RESPECT TO THE CLASS UPON WHICH IT IS IMPOSED.

POINT FOUR

SALT LAKE CITY HAS NO POWER TO LEVY A TAX UPON THE PLAINTIFF IN CONSIDERATION OF THE GRANTING OF A FRANCHISE FOR THE REASON THAT SALT LAKE CITY HAS NO POWER OR AUTHORITY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF UTAH TO EITHER GRANT OR WITHHOLD A FRANCHISE FOR THE BUSINESS CARRIED ON AND CONDUCTED BY THE PLAINTIFF AT AND SINCE THE TIME OF THE ENACTMENT OF THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951 IS NULL AND VOID UNDER ITS OWN TERMS BECAUSE OF

THE REFUSAL OF THE PLAINTIFF TO ACCEPT THE SAME.

The Ordinance of February 27, 1951 purports to grant a franchise to the plaintiff to engage in the business of rendering mass transportation service within Salt Lake City. The Ordinance authorizes the company to render service by means of motor coaches, trolley coaches or street cars. Paragraph 8 of the Ordinance imposes the 2% gross receipts tax as a consideration for the granting of the Ordinance. Paragraph 10 of the Ordinance provides that unless it is accepted in writing by the company within 30 days after enactment, it shall become null and void. It is admitted by the Answer that the plaintiff company did not file a written acceptance of the Ordinance. The reasons that the company did not file the written acceptance are obvious. In the first place, it did not want a franchise to operate street cars and trolley coaches because it had not been operating that type of conveyance for some four years and had no intention of ever again operating such conveyances. In the second place, under the laws of the State of Utah, Salt Lake City was without power to either grant or withhold a franchise to operate motor busses as will be hereinafter more fully discussed. In the third place, the company did not want to become subject to the 2% gross receipts tax. The company not having complied with the requirements of the franchise ordinance to make it become operative, the Ordinance falls by its own terms and the lower court should have declared it null and void because of that fact.

POINT TWO

PLAINTIFF IS NOT ESTOPPED FROM CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF THE ORDINANCE BY REASON OF THE FACT THAT IT HAS VOLUNTARILY MADE PAYMENT OF THE TAXES LEVIED BY SAID ORDINANCE.

The defendant, while it admits that the plaintiff did not accept the Ordinance in writing according to the terms thereof, maintains that the plaintiff is now estopped from attacking the validity of the Ordinance on two grounds:

- A. That it has actually carried on the business of rendering mass transportation in Salt Lake City since the enactment of the Ordinance; and
- B. That it has made payment of the tax provided for in the Ordinance for a number of years since the enactment of the Ordinance.

The invalidity of the first basis of estoppel claimed will be more fully discussed in another section. Suffice it to say at this point that the plaintiff does not recognize the right of Salt Lake City to either grant or withhold a franchise to operate motor busses on the Salt Lake City streets. The power to either withhold or grant a franchise is vested by the laws of the State of Utah with the Public Service Commission of Utah. The acts of the plaintiff in carrying on such business since February 27, 1951 are not acceptance of the franchise requirements even by implication for the reason that the plaintiff was doing nothing that it could not have done and would not have done had the franchise Ordinance never been adopted.

It was carrying on its business of rendering mass transportation service not pursuant to the Ordinance of February 27, 1951, but pursuant to Certificate of Convenience and Necessity No. 640 issued by the Public Service Commission of the State of Utah.

The second ground of estoppel claimed by the defendant is equally without merit. The fact that the tax has been paid cannot raise an estoppel. It is fundamental that an estoppel arises only where one party by the performance of an act has caused another party to change its position to its detriment in reliance upon such act.

The following language is found at 19 Am. Jur. page 642 and 643:

"The essential elements of an equitable estoppel as related to the party estopped are: (1) Conduct which amounts to a false representation or concealment of material facts, or, at least, which is calculated to convey the impression that the facts are otherwise than, and inconsistent with, those which the party subsequently attempts to assert; (2) intention, or at least expectation, that such conduct shall be acted upon by the other party; (3) knowledge, actual or constructive, of the real facts. As related to the party claiming the estoppel, they are: (1) Lack of knowledge and of the means of knowledge of the truth as to the facts in question; (2) reliance upon the conduct of the party estopped; and (3) action based thereon of such a character as to change his position prejudicially."

Applying the tests set forth above, let us ask the question, First: Has Salt Lake City suffered from the act of the plaintiff in paying the tax? The answer is obviously it has not, it has benefited. The 2% gross receipts tax yields a great deal more revenue than would a tax on the plaintiff company based upon

the same rates of taxation as are applied to other companies operating rubber-tired motor vehicles on the city streets for hire. Although this is not part of the record, it was agreed by counsel at oral argument before the lower court that the gross receipts tax has yielded Salt Lake City over the period of years an average of \$30,000.00 each year, whereas the vehicle tax applicable to other rubber-tired motor vehicles, as applied to the plaintiff's busses, would have yielded only about \$4500.00 per year.

The attention of the court is called to the fact that this is not an action to recover anything that has been paid in the past, but merely a petition to have the franchise declared invalid so that the plaintiff will have to make no payments under the invalid ordinance from here on. It is quite clear, therefore, that Salt Lake City has suffered no detriment from the act of the plaintiff in paying the tax, but has actually benefited to the extent of approximately \$125,000.00. Let us ask again, has Salt Lake City changed its position prejudicially because of the voluntary payment of the tax by Salt Lake City Lines. The answer once again is obviously no. Whatever position Salt Lake City Lines took in adopting the Ordinance it adopted prior to the time that the tax became due. It has not changed its position since that time, but is adhering to the position which it adopted at the time of the enactment of the Ordinance. If in fact the Ordinance is invalid and declared so, the city's power to adopt a new and valid Ordinance is no less today than it would have been immediately after the enactment of the Ordinance and before the payment of any money under the tax was made. There are no elements of estoppel present

in this case and there is no reason why the plaintiff should not be permitted to attack the validity of the Ordinance today with the same force and effect that it could have attacked it on the first day of April, 1951.

This same point was raised before the Supreme Court of Iowa in the case of Edward J. McKeon et al v. City of Council Bluffs, 221 N.W. 351. In 1877 the Missouri River changed its course cutting off from the City of Council Bluffs an area of some 1200 acres which had formerly been contiguous to the balance of the city. Although the cut-off portion, from the time of the shift of the river on, received no benefits from the city in the way of police service, fire service, etc. no petition for severance from the city was made for a period of some 50 years after the change in course. In the late 1920's the residents of the portion of the city which had been cut off, petitioned for severance on the ground that their property was no longer contiguous to the balance of the city and received no benefits from the city. The city attempted to defend on the grounds that the residents of this area were estopped from raising the question of severance because for a period of 50 years following the shift in the course of the river they had continued to pay taxes levied by the City of Council Bluffs. In disposing of this question of estoppel the Iowa Supreme Court stated:

"Equitable estoppel does not arise, in the absence of reliance and injury. If the adverse party has not acted to his prejudice, he is in no position to assert an equitable estoppel. Harley v. Merrill Brick Co. 83 Iowa, 73, 48 N.W. 1000; 5 Pom Eq. Jur. 4th ed. Sec. 951; 21 C. J. 1202. * * * No prejudice has resulted to the city of

Council Bluffs from the delay in asking for severance. The city has during the years subjected the property in question to municipal taxation without reciprocal benefits. Submission to an inequitable tax for one year can give no right to the imposition of it the next year. Such payment of taxes cannot be effectively set up as estoppel. Deiman v. Ft. Madison, 30 Iowa, 542, 550.

"Furthermore, the property owners have had each and every year the statutory right to severance. The condition giving them that right was a continuing condition, and the statutory right was a continuing right. None of the suggested defenses can apply to such a continuing and ever-existing and present right. Deiman v. Ft. Madison, 30 Iowa, 542; Smith v. Jefferson, 161 Iowa, 245, 45 L.R.A. (N.S.) 792, 142 N.W. 220, Ann. Cas. 1916A, 97; MacGowan v. Gibbon, 94 Neb. 772, 144 N.W. 808."

The defendant has suffered no detriment from the fact that the plaintiff has voluntarily paid the tax. The company should not, therefore, be estopped now that it is in financial straits and has difficulty paying the tax by the fact that during more affluent years it voluntarily paid the tax illegally imposed in order to avoid an open breach with the city authorities.

POINT THREE

SECTION 8 OF THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951 IS VOID AND INEFFECTIVE AND IN VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 10-8-80, U.C.A., 1953 FOR THE REASON THAT THE TAX LEVIED THEREIN IS NOT UNIFORM IN RESPECT TO THE CLASS UPON WHICH IT IS IMPOSED.

Section 10-8-80, U.C.A. 1953 provides as follows:

"License fees and taxes.—They may raise revenue by levying and collecting a license fee or tax on any business within the limits of the city, and regulate the same by ordinance; provided, that no Utah city or town shall collect a license fee or tax hereunder from any solicitor or salesman who solicits, obtains orders for or sells goods in such city or town solely for resale; and no enumeration of powers of cities contained in this chapter, shall be deemed to limit or restrict the general grant of authority hereby conferred. All such license fees and taxes shall be uniform in respect to the class upon which they are imposed. (Italics added.)

Salt Lake City has made no effort to make the gross receipts tax applicable to other firms or individuals carrying on businesses of the same class as that carried on by Salt Lake City Lines. The tax is not applicable to sigth-seeing busses which operate mostly within Salt Lake City, it is not applicable to taxi cabs, nor is it applicable to inter-city buslines which operate in and through Salt Lake City. These other companies pay a per vehicle tax which is graded upward according to the passenger carrying capacity of the vehicle in question. This vehicle tax if applied to Salt Lake City Lines would be but a small fraction of the amount of the gross receipts tax. The only other firms to which the gross receipts tax is applicable are the gas, electric and telephone utilities and certainly Salt Lake City Lines cannot be classified with these other utilities because, as is more fully set forth in the next succeeding section, while the city does have power to franchise the operation of the gas, electric and telephone utilities in Salt Lake City, it has no such power in regard to the business carried on and conducted by Salt Lake City Lines.

The necessity that a city license, fee or tax be uniform in respect to the class upon which it is imposed has been passed upon by this court a number of times. In the case of Salt Lake City v. Utah Light & Railway Co., 45 Ut. 50, 142 Pac. 1067, the validity of a Salt Lake City Ordinance establishing a license tax was challenged. The Ordinance in question imposed a license tax of \$1.00 per year per meter on electric companies furnishing electricity through metered service within the limits of Salt Lake City. The court held this Ordinance invalid because it applied only to companies furnishing electric service through meters and not to all companies furnishing electrical service. In passing upon the validity of this Ordinance, the court stated:

"Uniformity and equality, so far as those elements can be attained, are always to be the aim and guide of those upon whom is conferred the authority to impose or assess taxes. When once inequality is permitted, and it is established that the burden of taxation may be unequally distributed under governmental authority, the government permitting it becomes a farce and is entirely unworthy of either our respect or support. So long as the burdens of taxation are distributed equally, they cannot well become oppressive, since they are imposed upon those constituting the community at large, and the community as a whole always possesses the power to relieve itself in one way or another. When, however, the burdens are imposed upon only a part less than the majority, or a smaller fraction, the burden may easily become destructive, and, if not destructive, at least unjustly oppressive. Equality, therefore, becomes a safeguard against, if not an absolute prevention of, excessive and oppressive taxation. Where, however, those who, for the time being, are intrusted with the power to pass laws or ordinances by which taxation

may be imposed invade the rule of equality prescribed by the paramount law, it is the duty of the courts, when proper application is made, to declare such law or ordinance void, and thus arrest the evil at its inception. In doing so the courts are not, as it is sometimes popularly assumed, interfering with the law-making power, but are merely compelling that power to observe and obey the paramount law. For the reasons last stated, we are required to declare the ordinance in question invalid."

In the case of Park City v. Daniels, 36 Ut. 554; 149 Pac. 1094, the validity of a tax ordinance was challenged. The ordinance in question imposed a license fee on peddling or selling certain designated articles. In declaring the Ordinance unconstitutional, the court stated:

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