1957

## Salt Lake City Lines v. Salt Lake City : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

## POINT I

THE FAILURE OF PLAINTIFF TO FILE WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF THE ORDINANCE OF FEBRUARY 27, 1951, DID NOT RENDER IT NULL AND VOID.

Plaintiff is attempting to convert its failure to file a written consent to the ordinance of February 27, 1951, as the equivalent of a refusal to give such consent. Nowhere is there any inkling that a refusal to accept was ever transmitted to the City, or that the City ever regarded such failure as the equivalent, or that the plaintiff ever regarded such failure as the equivalent, of a refusal to accept. On the contrary both parties proceeded at all times under the theory that the ordinance was valid and that both were controlled in their relationship

with each other by the terms thereof. The reports required by the ordinance were made, the gross receipts given, the tax calculated and paid, and the books and records of the plaintiff were open to the City for checking, all as required by the terms of the ordinance, for six years before this action was commenced. Furthermore, as alleged in the answer, and admitted by plaintiff, plaintiff's officers consented and agreed, orally, to the passage of this very ordinance and to the increase in the license tax from  $\frac{1}{2}$  of 1% to 2% of the gross revenue as contained in said ordinance. The franchise, being in the nature of a contract, there would be some doubt as to the power of the City to change its terms without the consent of the plaintiff. So to remove this doubt the matter was discussed with plaintiff's officers. In these discussions plaintiff never did question the validity of the license tax, but orally agreed to the increase, thus clearing the way for the change. In addition, for five years, plaintiff complied with the terms of the ordinance and then petitioned for a reduction in the tax for 1956. It expressed gratitude for such concession. It is apparent, therefore, that there was never any refusal to accept the ordinance; that the lack of a written acceptance was merely an oversight. To now assert that such lack of written acceptance arose from a refusal to accept is an attempt now to create, after the fact, something that had no actuality at the time the ordinance was passed or during the 6 years since its passage before this suit was commenced and is wholly contrary to the attitude manifested by the plaintiff

through its complete compliance with the terms of the ordinance.

The authorities generally hold that a formal written acceptance of the franchise ordinance, even though it contains a provision that it shall be null and void without such acceptance, is not necessary; that the City may waive the written acceptance and acceptance may result from the practical use of the franchise.

12 *McQuillan Municipal Corp. Sec. 34.43, Page 150:*

“Sometimes, however, an ordinance granting a franchise requires the grantee to file his acceptance thereof. But where the grant of a franchise requires an acceptance in writing, the municipality may waive such acceptance, and the act of the company in using the streets may be sufficient as an acceptance.”

*Postal Tel. Cable Co. vs. City of Newport*, 76 S.W. 159, 25 Ky. L. Rep. 635.

Here the ordinance required acceptance in writing within 30 days or the same should be null and void and of no effect. The plaintiff refused to pay the license tax claiming it had not accepted the franchise and was operating under the federal statute governing post roads. The court says:

“The defendant entered on the streets soon after the ordinance was passed and constructed its system. It had no authority to do so, except under the ordinance. Its acceptance was an acceptance of the ordinance in the absence of some expressed disclaimer, which is not alleged. Its

failure to accept the ordinance in writing might be waived by the city, and this waiver is implied from its acquiescence in the defendant's acts.

"If the defendant was not satisfied with the terms of the grant it could have refused to accept it. . . . The defendant in going ahead under the ordinance also took its chance, and it cannot be heard to say now that the charge was too high."

*Postal Tel. Cable Co. vs. City of Newport*, 169 S.W. 700.

The same issue was involved here as in the next preceding case. The case was appealed to the Supreme Court of the United States, *Postal Tel. Cable Co. vs. City of Newport*, 247 U.S. 464, 62 Law Ed. 1215, where the court said:

"We assume if the first New York company did at the outset accept the ordinance, either in writing, according to its terms, or by erecting poles and wires and occupying the streets thereunder, or in any other manner satisfactory to the city, that company and its successors in the ownership of the telegraph system, including defendant, are bound to comply with the terms of the ordinance as to the special license tax so long as they continue to retain and enjoy the privileges conferred."

*City R Co. vs. Citizens Street R Co.*, 166 U.S. 557. 41 L. ed. 1114:

"This ordinance is also attacked upon the ground that it was never formally accepted by the company. There is really nothing in this contention. No formal resolution of the acceptance is necessary in any case, if the facts show an actual, practical acceptance by the company, or

action which would be only explicable in case the amendment were accepted. There are two circumstances in this case, either of which is sufficient to constitute an acceptance.

“Mr. Johnson, the manager of the road, who desired the extension of the charter, applied for an amendment making the original section 15 read forty five years instead of thirty years and in that connection says: ‘After a good deal of argument I was finally forced to concede to the wishes of the committee, and they recommended to the council an ordinance making it read ‘thirty seven years,’ instead of the ‘forty-five’ we applied for. This ordinance was consented to in committee, and afterwards agreed to with the council, as the best we could do under the circumstances.’ This was sufficient, as it is universally held that a previous request for an ordinance obviates the necessity of a subsequent acceptance. *Atlanta vs. Gate City Gaslight Co.* 71 Ga. 106; *Illinois River R. Co. vs. Zimmer*, 20 Ill. 654; *Lincoln & K Bank vs. Richardson*, 1 Me. 79 (10 Am. Dec. 34) *State, Carlton, vs. Dawson*, 22 Ind. 272; *Newton vs. Carbery*, 5 Cranch, C. C. 632; *Perkins vs. Sanders*, 56 Miss. 732, 739; 1 *Morawetz, Priv. Corp. Sec.* 23.

“We are also of opinion that an acceptance may be presumed from the fact that the amendment was beneficial to the corporation.”

The authorities also hold, as stated in 6 *McQuillan Municipal Corporations*, Sec. 20.12, Page 27:

“One who accepts an ordinance and treats it as in force for a period of years may, under the circumstances, be precluded from challenging its validity.”



This is true even though the license granted was ultra vires, though not against public policy. In support of this proposition, we cite the following:

*Chicago Gen. Ry. Co. vs. City of Chicago*, 176 Ill. 253, 52 N.E. 880.

A suit to collect a mileage tax imposed by the franchise ordinance. The court says:

“We are also of the opinion that, even though it might be held that the condition upon which the permit or license was granted to the defendant railway company was ultra vires, the city not having the power to impose it, nevertheless, the ordinance having been accepted by the company with the condition attached, agreeing thereby to perform it, it became a valid contract between it and the city, the validity of which the defendant is now estopped to deny. The act of the city in imposing the condition cannot be treated as against public policy or prohibited by statute, and void, and therefore, having accepted the contract in its entirety and enjoyed the benefits for which it agreed to pay the amount prescribed, it cannot now repudiate that contract. *Kadish vs. Association*, 151 Ill. 531, 38 N.E. 236; *Cook Co. vs. City of Chicago*, 158 Ill. 524, 42 N.E. 67; *City of Fulton vs. Northern Illinois College*, 158 Ill., 333, 42 N.E. 138.”

*City of Springfield vs. Central Union Tel. Co.* 184 Ill. App. 400.

The court says:

“The ordinance having been accepted, neither the grantees nor their assigns may be permitted to repudiate any of the terms and conditions that are not contrary to public policy or prohibited

by statute. Having accepted it became a valid contract in its entirety.”

*Brattleboro vs. Town of Brattleboro*, 173 A. 209,  
.....Vt.....

The court says:

“One who accepts an unconstitutional legislative enactment and treats it as in force for years cannot be heard to question its validity. Nor can he challenge such enactment on the ground that it is discriminatory.”

## POINT II

THE PLAINTIFF HAS WAIVED ALL OBJECTIONS TO THE VALIDITY OF SAID ORDINANCE AND IS BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND IS ESTOPPED TO QUESTION ITS VALIDITY.

The facts as contained in the answer and admitted by plaintiff clearly show that plaintiff has always regarded the ordinance as valid and binding in all its terms. It has complied with and performed all its terms. It has filed with the City Treasurer quarterly reports of gross revenue, together with a computation of the tax to be paid. It has permitted the city to verify such reports by giving access to its books. It has petitioned and accepted a modification of the terms of the franchise ordinance. It has reported to the Public Service Commission that it was bound to pay the license tax and included that license tax as an item of expense in justification for a raise in its fares. The Public Service Commission, at plaintiff's instance, considered the tax as a legal and recurring expense and granted a

raise in fares based upon such expense, which raise is still in effect. The people of Salt Lake City have been paying these increased fares since March 17, 1954 and will continue to pay them indefinitely in the future. By plaintiff's own acts and actions the people of this City have been, and now are, paying these taxes through the medium of paying increased fares. The officers of the plaintiff agreed orally to the increase in the license tax from  $\frac{1}{2}$  of 1% to 2%, and upon such agreement the ordinance was adopted, notwithstanding the ordinance then in force still had four years to run. The plaintiff has been operating motor buses exclusively since 1947, but has, nevertheless, complied with the terms of the original ordinance and the ordinance of 1951 and has never at any time asserted that the change to motor transportation or otherwise worked an avoidance of the franchise or authorized it to operate without a franchise.

As stated in *Salt Lake City vs. Utah Light and Traction Company*, 52 Ut. 210, 153 P. 556:

“Where the controversy has arisen between the contracting parties merely, and in ordinary actions and proceedings, the courts have usually compelled compliance with the ordinance treating them as contracts.”

Under the conception that this ordinance is a contract which it in legal effect is, it is inconceivable that the plaintiff can now successfully assert, in the face of the facts above stated, that it has not waived the mere formality of filing a written acceptance of the ordinance,

and is not estopped to deny that it has entered into a contract with Salt Lake City governing its right to use the city streets for the prosecution of its business. As stated by the court in the case of *Chicago General Railway Company vs. City of Chicago*, supra.

“The ordinance having been accepted by the company with the condition attached, agreeing thereby to perform it, it became a valid contract between it and the city, the validity of which the defendant is estopped to deny.”

The authorities cited by plaintiff do not involve contracts between the parties involved and the city by the terms of which the parties agreed to pay the city a license tax and so are not in point.

### POINT III

BY IMPOSING THE LICENSE TAX UPON PLAINTIFF BUT NOT UPON OTHER TYPES OF MOTOR CONVEYANCES THE ORDINANCE DOES NOT VIOLATE THE RULE AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND LACK OF UNIFORMITY IN RESPECT TO CLASS AS CONTENDED BY PLAINTIFF.

The rule is stated in 75 *A.L.R. Page 26* as follows:

“With one exception, hereinafter noted (*Weimar Storage Co. vs. Dill* (1928) 103 N.J. Eq. 307, 143 Atl. 438, *infra*), the courts which have passed upon the question have uniformly held that motor busses or jitneys operating as common carriers of passengers between fixed termini or over regular routes are the proper subject of a separate classification, and that a state may, without denying the equal protection of the laws, subject such motor busses or jitneys to a tax, and exempt therefrom all other kinds of motor carriers.”

We refer the court to the cases there cited and quoted from. Typical of the views expressed by the courts is the following from *Allan vs. Bellingham* 95 Wash. 12, 163 P. 18, involving an ordinance which defines a jitney bus to mean and include "every motor propelled vehicle not operated on tracks, used in the occupation of carrying persons for hire, operating on any street for the purpose of affording a means of transportation along any street similar to that afforded by street railways, by indiscriminately accepting and discharging within the limits of the city such persons as may offer themselves for transportation for hire along the ways or courses on which such vehicle is used or operated, or may be running."

The court says:

"The record does not disclose the character of the business conducted by the other kinds of common carriers enumerated by the appellant, and, of course, the court has only such knowledge of the matter as is possessed by the generality of mankind. In so far as we are advised, we think there is a wide distinction between the class of business done by jitney busses and that done by the other carriers named. Street cars are so far distinct as to be in a class by themselves, and any regulation applicable to a jitney bus could hardly be applicable to their situation. Auto stages operate on regular schedules between fixed points, usually between one city or town and another. Auto busses and horse carriages ordinarily carry passengers between given points, usually to and from depots, docks or other landings, and hotels. Sightseeing automobiles are operated more in the

nature of private conveyances than as public carriers, and their business bears no relation to the business of a jitney bus. Taxicabs, livery rigs, and the like operate from fixed stands and are put into use on hire. The jitney bus differs from each of these. It is operated continuously upon the streets, usually in the most congested parts, soliciting and taking up passengers wherever they can be found. It is never for hire at all; all that is offered is a seat and an opportunity to ride to some point within the limit of its operations. Its unrestricted use is fraught with danger, not only to the passenger it carries, but to others using the streets for their own purposes. Being a common carrier, it is a subject of regulation, and we are constrained to believe that its business is such as to make it subject of separate classification. This being true, the city council of a municipality may lawfully exact regulations applicable to its business which it does not make applicable to the business of other common carriers, without violating either of the constitutional provisions before cited.

“Municipal ordinances regulating the jitney traffic as a class apart from other common carriers have been enacted in many of the principal cities of our sister states. These, in so far as we are advised, have been uniformly upheld by the highest courts of such states against attacks on the ground that they violated the equal protection and due process of law clauses in the Federal Constitution, and the provisions directed against class legislation in the Constitution of the individual states. Some of the cases are the following: *City of Memphis vs. State ex rel. Ryals*, 133 Tenn. 83, 179 S.W. 631, L.R.A. 1916B, 1151; *Ex parte Bogle* (Tex. Cr. R.) 179 S.W. 1193;

Huston vs. City of Des Moines (Iowa) 156 N.W. 883; Ex Parte Dickey (W. Va.) 85 S.E. 781, L.R.A. 1915F, 840; Thielke vs. Albee, 79 Or. 48, 153 Pac. 793; Ex parte Cardinal, 170 Cal. 519, 150 Pac. 348, L.R.A. 1915F, 850; Hazelton vs. City of Atlanta, 144 Ga. 775, 87 S.E. 1043; Auto Transit Co. vs. Forth Worth (Tex. Civ. App.) 182 S.W. 685."

This case is referred to in *Texas Co. vs. Cohn*, 112 P. 2d 522 as follows:

"In *Allen vs. Bellingham*, the validity of an ordinance of the city of Bellingham, which placed a license, or occupation tax, upon the owners of jitney busses, was challenged. This court held that the ordinance did not violate the Federal or State Constitutions, although operators of auto stages, sight-seeing automobiles, taxicabs, and street cars, manifestly in competition with jitney busses, were not subject to the tax."

*Dickey vs. Davis* 76 W. Va. 576, 85 S.E. 781, L.R.A. 1915 F. 840.

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